Intensive Home Based Services: 

Multisystemic Therapy - Building Stronger Families (MST-BSF)
*** Clarification regarding budget period for the MST-BSF application.

Providers are to submit a one year operating budget assuming full staffing. There are no start-up funds for this program but provider requests to allow the use of operating funds for one-time expenses will be considered post-selection. 

A.  Revision to MST-BSF RFP as of 3/18/13:

Please note the following revision on page 5 of RFP (Amount and Terms of Award):  

The DCF funding amount for 1 MST-BSF team is $435,000  The originally stated amount of $440,000 is not correct.
B.  Questions from the MST-BSF Bidders Conference

February 28, 2014

1. Have there been any changes in what can be billed to Medicaid or third party payers for this service?

There are no changes in what can be billed to Medicaid or third party payers for this service.  MST-BSF can only bill for the outpatient Social Club group and psychiatric / medication management services.

2. Will there be start-up funds for this program? 

We will not pay any start up funds, as this program does not have capital or other kind of initial investment that is required. 

3. On page - 5, I just want to make sure I understand this: Is it for the whole regions that you are looking for this program or is it just for the area office areas?  So like with Waterbury are you looking for Waterbury, Torrington and Danbury?

Each MST-BSF team will serve one of the following Area Offices (and the towns in that Area Office - 

· New Haven (city of New Haven); 

· Hartford (Hartford, Bloomfield, West Hartford, & Windsor); and 

· Waterbury (Waterbury, Beacon Falls, Cheshire, Middlebury, Naugatuck, Oxford, prospect, Southbury, Wolcott, & Woodbury).

4. Are the referrals just from DCF or do they come from the community also?

The majority of the referrals will come from DCF. However, because this service accepts Medicaid funding, non-DCF referred clients (usually self-referred) can be admitted into the program if they meet admission criteria.

5. Who pays for the training and quality assurance? Is it DCF or the provider? 

The MST-BSF training and quality assurance services are paid for by DCF, except for the cost of the 5-day initial MST training.  The latter is offered by Advanced Behavioral Health on a quarterly basis here in CT at a cost of $500 per person.  Therefore, your budget will need to include this cost. 

If your staff person is not hired at a time near a quarterly MST training, you may be expected to pay the full cost of having that staff person receive the training in Charleston, SC, or another site who is offering this training.

6. Does DCF cover the five days standard MST training also?

See the answer in question #5.

7. Is there a PSDCRS requirement?

Yes, the provider will need to enter all MST-BSF cases in the PSDCRS.  The data points are already developed and ready in the PSDCRS

8. Why this model was chosen to expand as opposed to like FBR or some other similar model?

MST-BSF was chosen for expansion to meet the need for a service for children aged 6 years and older who are at risk of removal from their home due to parental substance abuse.

9. Would DCF entertain applications in this round for area offices not on this list?

        No, because we have not selected the next expansion sites

10.  Will you issue a new RFP for the next expansion?

We may.  If the next sites are in the regions covered by this RFP, and we expect to start the programs in those sites in the next year, we will look to the applicants that scored in the top three for this RFP. If not, we would re-issue this RFP for the area offices in the other regions.

C.  Questions Received

Deadline for Receipt:  March 7, 2014
11. Can the Social Club for FBR (Family Based Recovery) be combined with the Social Club for MST-BSF?  In other words, can the clients of both programs go to the same group?

FBR and MST-BSF are 2 different models.  FBR's Social Club is directed by the FBR clinical team, and the MST-BSF Social Club is directed by the MST-BSF clinical team.  A separate Social Club must be held for MST-BSF participants. 
12. What training will be provided for newly funded teams, and for any staff coming on after program initiation? (After initial training, will new hires need to be sent to South Carolina for training?)

The following training will be provided for newly funded teams and for any staff coming on after program start-up (see www.mstservices.com/training/overview for more information about these trainings):

· 5-Day MST Orientation Training

· 4-Day MST-BSF Orientation Training [2 days MST-CAN (Child Abuse Neglect) interventions, 2 days RBT (Reinforcement-Based Treatment) for substance abuse interventions]
· 4-Day MST-CAN Trauma Training (not yet shown on www.mstservices.com website; 2 days adult, 2 days child)

· Supervisor Orientation Training 

After the initial training, new hires may need to travel for any or all of the above trainings. See the response to Question #52 for information about costs and training locations. 

13. The MST-BSF Therapist Adherence Measure is conducted with the parent by an “independent interviewer” who does not provide clinical services. Can this be done by the Case Manager? If not, then who?

MST-BSF TAMs (ART) collection is done by MST Institute.  It must be accomplished by subcontracting with the MST Institute for families enrolled in MST-BSF.   The MST-BSF team is required to provide the family's contact information to the subcontractor for the MST-BSF TAMs.  The TAMs costs are covered by DCF.  For more information, see the website: mstinstitute.com
14. What percentage of the client population is expected to be privately insured?

We do not have an expected percentage of clients who are privately insured.  However, in the past 4 years, 68% of all MST-BSF clients at discharge had HUSKY, 10% had non-HUSKY Medicaid, and 12% had private insurance.  Of course, the percentage can vary, year by year.
15. What training is the psychiatrist or APRN expected to undergo and what is the time commitment?

It would be preferable for the psychiatrist to attend the entire 4-Day MST-CAN Orientation Training, but recognizing that this is a huge time and financial commitment to send the psychiatrist for training, the minimally acceptable training for the psychiatrist is as follows:

· Day 1 of the 5-Day Orientation Training (9 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. / MST Overview and Clinical Implementation)

· Day 1 of the 4-Day MST-CAN Orientation Training (9 a.m. – 10:45 / Intro and Review of MST-CAN Research and Case Presentation)

· Day 3 of the 4-Day MST-CAN Orientation Training (9 a.m. – 10:15 / Intro to RBT and Background and Theoretical Underpinnings of RBT)

16. Regarding Question #2- Please describe your agency’s ability to meet the five (5) Applicant Requirements for this RFP, as listed on page 9.  There are actually six (6) Applicant Requirements listed on page 9, not five (5). Should Question #2 really say “meet the six (6)...”? If not, then which five, (5).

The Applicant Requirements on page 20 for Question 2 should read: "Please describe your agency's ability to meet the six (6) Applicant requirements for this RFP, as listed on page 9."
17. On page 17 of the RFP under Administrative Aspects of BSF, it says, “DCF currently funds MST Services to provide initial and on-going MST-BSF training…” On the same page under Training, it describes in detail different types of training. At the Bidder’s conference there was discussion on how the clinical team needs to attend initial five-day training on MST through ABH. It was further stated that the cost is $500/person so teams could figure $2,000 for four staff plus other funds to cover travel, etc. To clarify, DCF will not cover the Standard MST Model Training? Teams should budget for the Standard MST Model Training? 
See the responses to Question #12 for a listing of the initial training provided for newly funded teams and training which will be required for any staff coming on after program start-up, and see the response to Question #52 for more complete information about the potential costs to providers for training needs that may arise after the initial trainings are delivered. 

18. What are the implications of the release of this RFP and the Social Impact Bond Project for Child Welfare Families Impacted by Substance Abuse RFP for the same target population/addressing the same need? 

While both RFP's are focused, ultimately, on enhancing DCF's capacity to meet the substance abuse service needs of our families, the DCF Social Impact Bonding (SIB) RFP is focused specifically on securing an intermediary who will work with DCF to develop a SIB project that would target families involved in child protective services whose parents or caregivers are impacted by substance abuse.  The selected intermediary would work with DCF to select one or more intervention models that would be implemented or expanded through a SIB financing model.   
19. Will MST-BSF be excluded from the models that could be implemented through the eventual SIB project? 

The DCF SIB RFP is focused on securing an intermediary who will work with DCF to develop a SIB project that would target families involved in child protective services whose parents or caregivers are impacted by substance abuse.  The selected intermediary would work with DCF to select one or more intervention models that would be implemented or expanded through a SIB financing model.  DCF and the selected intermediary reserve the right to consider both new and existing substance abuse intervention models for a SIB project. 

20. Will providers of FBR and/or MST-BSF services be excluded from participating in the SIB project?
The DCF SIB RFP is focused on securing an intermediary who will work with DCF to select one or more intervention models that would be implemented or expanded through a SIB financing model.  DCF and the selected intermediary reserve the right to consider both new and existing substance abuse intervention models for a SIB project. 

21. Will clients served through the identified models – FBR and MST BSF – serve as a comparison group for the SIB project? 
The DCF SIB RFP is focused on securing an intermediary who will work with DCF to develop a SIB project that would target families involved in child protective services whose parents or caregivers are impacted by substance abuse.  As part of the SIB project, the selected intermediary will work with DCF to select an independent evaluator who would design the project's overall evaluation with input from the selected intermediary.  

22. What are the services that DCF is expecting the agencies bill for via Medicaid/Private Insurance? All Outpatient Clinic services, Home Based services? 

See answer in Question #1.

23. Will DCF cover project start-up expenses such as computers, and office furniture? Within or outside of the $440,000 projected budget?

Any project start-up expenses will be covered within the provider's MST-BSF budgets for FY 14 (from 6/1/14 - 6/30/14) and FY 15 (7/1/14 - 6/30/15).

24. For prospective referrals to the MST-BSF program, can DCF provide demographic data, such as number of children in families, ages of children, race/ethnicity, cases by town, insurance status, type of parental substance abuse, and number of cases by DCF office?  
Please see the information from the Town Pages for information about the types of allegations and substantiations accepted by DCF by CT town. http://www.ct.gov/dcf/cwp/view.asp?a=2565&q=317652
The other information requested is currently unavailable.

25. Please clarify the sentences on page 5 “Additional teams will be added as funding allows, with priority being given to Regions with higher caseloads of children who may be referred to MST-BSF. Selections of providers will continue to be made from this procurement for the next year.” Does this mean that if new teams are funded over the next year, these new teams might be funded only in the three regions listed: Region 5 Waterbury, Region 2 New Haven and Region 4 Hartford?

See the answer in Question #10.

26. Can the Therapist Adherence Measure tool be made available?

Yes, it is available. For a copy of the Adherence Measure, please contact Melanie.Duncan@mstservices.com
27. Can you please post the names of the agencies that have submitted a letter of intent by Region for which they were submitted?

	Name of Applicant
	Region Applying For

	Boys and Girls Village
	2

	Bridges… A Community Support System
	2

	Community Health Resources
	4

	Community Mental Health Affiliates, Inc.
	5

	Connecticut Junior Republic Association Inc.
	2 and 5

	Family Centered Services, Inc.
	2

	Hartford Behavioral Health
	4

	InterCommunity, Inc
	4

	NAFI, CT
	2, 4 and 5

	The Village for Families & Children
	4

	Wellmore
	5

	Wheeler Clinic
	4


28. Is it required that the MST-BSF agency provide transportation to and from the weekly Social Club?

It is not required, but it is sometimes clinically warranted to provide participants with transportation to make it possible for parents to attend. The MST-BSF team would work with the client concurrently to address transportation barriers to make staff transport unnecessary as quickly as possible. 

29. Is the on-call telephonic only?

No. On-call for MST-BSF sometimes requires therapists to go to the client’s home or to meet the family at other locations in the community during times of crisis. MST-BSF is a 24/7 program; and at times, this requires the therapist to meet face-to-face with the family when there is a crisis. This crisis and on-call system is staffed by members of the MST-BSF team only.

30. Is in-home MST reimbursable through Medicaid and private insurance?

No.  Regular MST is reimbursable for clinical and case management services only through Medicaid and not by private insurance.  However, the clinical and case management services in MST-BSF are not reimbursed by any third party payer.
31. Can an estimate be provided of what the various assessment tools and instruments will cost annually?


The vast majority of the clinical tools used in the model do not have costs associated with them. Measures administered with all families incur no costs:

· MST associated tools (e.g., FIT circles, Strength and Needs Assessments) – available to all licensed teams as part of license.

· Global Assessment of Individual Needs – Q3 – required for all DCF-funded programs (this measure replaces the RFP’s mention of the Addiction Severity Index, which will NOT be used in CT; the GAIN-Q3 will replace it)

· Supplemental substance abuse assessment items (e.g., URICA)– available in the public domain (free) or provided by MST Services
· Adult Trauma Assessment – public domain (free)
· Child Assessment of Stressful Events (CASE) – public domain (free)
One instrument, the Beck Depression Inventory (BDI), is administered to parents when depressive symptoms are a target of treatment (i.e., as warranted). About 30% of the caseload may have need for monthly administrations of this tool during the period the case is open; each administration of the BDI costs approximately $2.20. Thus, the maximum per year expenditure for this measure is approximately $92.40 (i.e., 30% of 21 clients per year = 7 clients X 6 BDIs X$ 2.20 each).

32. Can you identify who has submitted a Letter of Intent for New Haven?
See the answer in Question #27.

33. Please provide an estimate of how much program income is generated by this model.   

In the past 3 Fiscal Years (FY), the income generated has been under $4,000 per FY.
34. Can you provide information about the annualized budgets for the currently running MST-BSF programs?  What percentage of the total budget is generally allocated to salary and benefits; occupancy; transportation; and family incentives/assistance.   
Based on the SFY2013 year end report, the DCF funding was $432,864 with 3rd party income of $2705, totaling $435,569. Of the total, salaries and fringe = 73.4%; travel =4% Occupancy 3%; all other program expenses = 6.1% and administrative expense= 13.5%. Family assistance/incentives are included in the program expenses, and are approximately $10,000.
35. Does this model require an adult DPH substance abuse license?  
The in-home services in MST-BSF do not require DPH licensure.  The only MST-BSF services that require licensure are the psychiatric / medication management services and Social Club.  Since the Social Club group is directed by a clinician, it is viewed by DPH as a treatment service that can only be delivered at a licensed clinic.

36. Do you want one full year operational budget and one first year budget with phase in cost (computers and other office start up costs)? 

See the answer in Question #23.

37. Please confirm that each team would only serve the region office area listed, not the entire region. 

See the answer in Question #3.

38. Please provide the list of agencies that submitted letters of intent for each region. 

See the answer in Question #27.

39. Can you please provide a list of the current providers and the region/ office they serve? 

The only current provider is Wheeler Clinic, serving the New Britain and Meriden offices.
40. The RFP states that you will continue to add teams over the next year as funding allows.  How does an agency that has a presence across the state ensure that their application will be considered for future teams if the team is added in a new area office or region? 

See the answer in Question #10.

41. When we read about the model it states that the identified client is the adolescent, however from the RFP meeting it sounded like the identified client was the parent? Please clarify who is the identified client?
Within any version of MST, the entire family ecology is considered the client. However, the case is referred to MST-BSF because the parent physically abused or neglected the child and is abusing substances. Thus, the clinical case is generally opened under the parent. Cases are also opened for the children receiving MST-BSF when their clinical needs are great, such as when child psychiatric care is needed. 

42. Application question #2 asks for a response regarding ability to meet the five (5) Applicant Requirements, as listed on page 9.  There are six (applicant requirements listed on page 9.  Should the response address all six applicant requirements listed? 

See the answer in Question #16.

43. The outcomes listed on page 19 include serving 24 families annually. On page 14 under Caseload & Dosage of Services, the number of families served annually is listed as 20-24. Please clarify – will teams be held responsible for serving 20-24 or 24 families per year?

The number of families served annually is a minimum of  21 families. This is based on the length of stay for each case.  During the start-up, it may take time until therapists have full caseloads as MST-BSF requires a graduated start-up (one new case per therapist per week until caseloads reach 4. During the first year, cases may have a longer length of stay due to therapists learning to implement a complex model with families with serious, multiple clinical problems. 

44. The RFP identifies both regions and specific area offices (page 5).  Please confirm whether the geographic scope of the service regions includes the entire region or only the area office identified.

See the answer in Question #3.

45. Question 15 of the of the application questions asks the bidder to describe how they will integrate the other data systems (GAIN and MST Services) with the bidder’s current data system.   Does DCF anticipate requiring data from providers in addition to what is entered into PSDCRS or the GAIN or MST Services websites?  

No, as the only data that is expected for the MST-BSF provider to enter is in the PSDCRS, GAIN, and MST Services websites.
46. Please publish a list of bidder’s submitting letters of intent and the region/area included in the LOI.
See the answer in Question #27.

47. Please list the agencies that were represented at the Bidders Conference.
· InterCommunity, Inc.

· The Village for Families and Children

· Wheeler Clinic

· Community Solutions, Inc.

· NAFI CT

· Community Mental Health Affiliates

· Bridges…A Community Support System
· Wellmore

· Hartford Behavioral Health

· Connecticut Junior Republic

· New Opportunities, Inc.

48. Please list the agencies that submitted letters of intent, including the designated areas for their applications.
See the answer in Question #27.

49. What is the established Husky reimbursement rate for MST?  Is the reimbursement rate only for clinical services, or can case management services also be reimbursed?
The HUSKY rate for MST is not applicable for MST-BSF.  See the answers in Questions #1 and #30.

50. Where can we find a copy of the standardized tools required by the model developer to inform the evaluation and treatment plan (page 15) – Trauma Assessment for Adults, Child Assessment of Stressful Events, Beck Depression Inventory, and Addiction Severity Index?
See the answer in Question #31. The Addiction Severity Index will not be used in CT; it will be replaced by the GAIN-Q3 and supplemental substance abuse questions provided by MST Services.  With the exception of the BDI, all other tools will be provided to the provider organization at the orientation training. For the BDI, provider organizations are responsible for purchasing sufficient copies to meet clinical demands.  The website is http://www.pearsonclinical.com/psychology/products/100000159/beck-depression-inventoryii-bdi-ii.html?Pid=015-8018-370
51. Is there a website you would recommend that provides a detailed description of the treatment model?
No, there is no website that provides this but a detailed description of the treatment model can be found in the pilot study publication discussed on page 8 of the RFP. To receive a copy of this publication, please fill out a publication form (http://academicdepartments.musc.edu/psychiatry/research/fsrc/subsites/form.htm)  from the FSRC - Family Services Research Center at the Medical University of South Carolina and request publication # 462 at no charge.

52. Please summarize the information about when and how often the 5 day standard training is provided by ABH?  If agency staff need the training outside of those times where are they offered and what is the cost?  Is it allowable for the cost of standard training and travel to be included in the budget?  MST-BSF training, quarterly booster training, and trauma treatment for children and adult training are also mentioned.  Are they offered several times during the year, and is there any potential agency cost for these trainings?
The costs associated with the initial training of staff at program start-up (except for the MST 5 day orientation) are paid by DCF, including quarterly booster trainings costs.  See the answer in Question #12 for more information about the training required.
The cost of training for ‘late hires’ and replacement staff (including travel if needed) will be the fiscal responsibility of the provider organization.

For the following trainings, see www.mstservices.com/training/overview  for more information about these trainings, timing and locations.

· 5-day Orientation training: Over the past three years, ABH has averaged a 5-day training every three months.  Staff that need trained between those times can attend a 5-day Orientation Training in a number of locations. While ABH has traditionally charged less ($500 per participant), the typical cost of the 5-day Orientation Training is $850 per participant plus travel.

· 4-Day MST-CAN Orientation Training; cost $650 per participant plus travel 

· 4-Day MST-CAN Trauma Training (not yet shown on www.mstservices.com website); cost $650 per participant plus travel. 

· Supervisor Orientation Training; cost $350 per participant plus travel 

All required trainings will be scheduled on a regular basis and additional training locations will be determined in the future.  Trainings in New York City, Connecticut, and Charleston are likely.  

53. Which provider is running the current pilot program?

See the answer in Question # 39.

54. Is there any data or findings that can be shared from the pilot?

See page 8 of the RFP for a brief description of the pilot study data. To receive a copy of the publication on this study, please fill out a publication form (http://academicdepartments.musc.edu/psychiatry/research/fsrc/subsites/form.htm) 

from the FSRC - Family Services Research Center at the Medical University of South Carolina and request publication # 462 at no charge.

55. Is the pilot provider precluded from bidding on this program?

No.

56. Would we need to obtain a DPH Substance Abuse license to provide the social club or are these services covered by our DCF outpatient license? 
 See the answer in Question #35.
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